- Jew of the present generation realized,
ive feel sure, thet the plot of ground so
long encloserd by a high hoard fence at
he corner of ML Vernon and Barney
trects 15 an arca of hisloric  religious
ignificance particutarly 1o those of
ftoman Cathobc faith,
- Bul now thal (he proteclive fence s
removed anid landscaping work is under-
way, it won't be long  before this spol
takes an the aspect ol a religious shrine,
hecause here iU was that the first Catho-
fiec ehureh in Newport was cetablished.
While Cathaolic chaplaing said mass in
the Colany House during the French nc-
cupation in the Revolution, and services
were conducled by visiting priests, it was
hot until 1828 that an abandened school
on this plot was ulilized for & church.
t 8o rapidly ditdd {he congregation grow
that the first Sl Joseph'sa Church  was
built there. IL was dedicated in 1837, anly

Resources:

1850 Newport map published by W.H. Peek:

Historie Religious Ground

to he abamtoned when SL Mary's Chureh
was completed.

But the site was consecrated ground
anid while the church building eventually
wak razed the Rite remained a cemelery

in fact. The ancient markers even now
aie being restored, to be replaced on the
graves they marked a century ago.

When the restoration of the site of this
Mest Catholie church has been completed
we will have, within several hundred
vards of cach ather, three well kept relics
of Newport's carly religions. On one side
ol Barney  Street, running  through to
Toura Street, is the ancient Seventh Day
Baptist Meeting House and the venerahle
Towrn Synagogue. Nearby, across the
street, will he the site of Newporl's first
Roman Catholic Church and cemetery.
Here, indecd, will be a complex of  jis-
loric, religious significanee,

Newport Daily News: June 22, 1962

https://www.loc.gov/resource/g3773n.1a000827/

The Green Light:

https://thepointassociation.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/1962-January.pdf

(see article on page 4: “The Old Schoolhouse”)

- Do you have an ancestor that may have been at one of the
churches on Barney and Mount Vernon Streets?
- Do you remember the old cemetery before 1962?

We souls bhe to heas from goul

Please write to us at: newportirishhistory@gmail.com



https://www.loc.gov/resource/g3773n.la000827/
https://thepointassociation.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/08/1962-January.pdf
mailto:newportirishhistory@gmail.com
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first Catholie Charch Site
To Be Newport Park Area !
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The first chureh was upend in by chaplains of French Admiral
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from anv supervision. used it as
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The remeleries division of the
diaccer. under which the old ¢ent-
elivy has been place], smd yes
terday through Joseph Avrlello of

by the froce  pbort.

I Febsuary 1827 the Hev, Pal
rick Byrne of Hoston visited New-
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Adams and in the coal mines !n
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ani deciphering. hurch in Rbede Island. In Oc-

Summer rve will be plantcd 1o
give Immediate beautification  {a

“tolar 1825 Bishop Fenwick visited
cpreacked aml confirmed 11 per.

csins. [haring his sermon he urged

the lot. In the fall,  perinanent
grass will be sown which, willt the
rema'nlag Iyees, will creale  a
small parklike area for the neigh-i
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v the Rev. James O'Reilly in
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First Catholic Church Site To Be Newport Park Area

The site of the state’s first Ro-
man Catholic church and probably
its first Catholic cemetery --- at
Mount Vernon and Barney Streets
-- is being developed by Provi-
dence Diocese into what will be a
historical neighborhood park and
cemetery.

The first church was opened in
1828 but the gravestones in the
cemetery are about 200 years old.

For years the corner parcel of
land has been surrounded by a
high wooden fence and the land
has been overgrown with trees,
shrubbery, weeds and grass. De-
bris was tossed over the fence and
children, screened by the fence
from any supervision, used it as
a playfield.

The cemeteries division of the
diocese, under which the old cem-
etery has been placed, said yes-
terday through Joseph Auriello of
Barrington, its superintendent,
that the parcel is being rehabili-
tated and beautified.

Many of the trees have been cut
down and the area bulldozed. The
old cellar has been filled in and
the area graded. About 20 old
gravestones have been removed to
the St. Columba’s Cemetery work-
shop in Middletown for cleaning
and deciphering.

Summer rye will be planted to
give immediate beautification to
the lot in the fall, permanent
grass will be sown which, with the
remaining tress, will create a
small parklike area for the neigh-
borhood. The tombstones will be
returned, after the grass is estab-
lished, and laid flat in the proper
places shown on a diagram of the
old cemetery.

A plaque giving its history will
be placed at the site. Workers
from St. Columbus will maintain
the historic site.

Not only will this give the neigh-
borhood an open parklike area,
Auriello said, but he feels that
children, playing in the open in-

stead of behind a solid fence, will
cause no further damage there.

Through this plot of land, New-
port can claim the honor of being
the cradle of the Catholic church
in Rhode Island.

During the War of Independ-
ence, in 1778, mass was offered
by chaplains of the French Admiral
D’Estaing in the south room of the
Colony House on Washington
Square. After the departure of the
French allies, there were still
Catholics in Newport. In 1791 Bish-
op Carroll of Baltimore and Fa-
ther Thayer of Boston conferred
the Sacrament of Baptism in New-
port.

In February 1827 the Rev. Pat-
rick Byrne of Boston visited New-
port and congregations in Fort
Adams and in the coal mines in
Portsmouth prepared over 150 for
the reception of Holy Commun-
ion. Encouraged by Father
Byrne’s report, Bishop Fenwick
authorized the Rev. Robert D.
Woodley of Providence to attend
Newport as an outmission.

In 1828 Farther Woodley pur-
chased and fitted up a small
building on Barney Street previ-
ously used as a school for colored
children as the first Catholic
church in Rhode Island. In Oc-
tober 1828 Bishop Fenwick visited,
preached and confirmed 11 per-
sons. During his sermon he urged
the purchase of additional land
for future needs.

In 1830, the Rev. John Corry
succeeded Father Woodley in care
of the Newport mission. The lat-
ter, relying on his rapidly in-
creasing congregation, began the
erection of a more pretentious
edifice on Mount Vernon Street,
which was dedicated Aug. 20, 1837.
It was knows as St. Joseph’s and
had a seating capacity of between
700 and 800.

In the fall of 1837 Father Corry
was succeeded by the Rev. C.

Lee, who in turn was succeeded
by the Rev. James O’Reilly in
1839.



